
 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are invited to attend a Meeting of the  
 

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
At: 
 

Committee Room 2, Civic Centre, Swansea. 
 

On: 
 

Wednesday, 16 July 2014 

Time: 
 

5.00 pm 

 
AGENDA 

Page No. 
 
1 Election of Vice - Chair for the 2014 - 2015 Municipal Year.  
 
2 Apologies for Absence.  
 
3 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interest. 1 - 2 
 
4 Minutes. 3 - 4 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Democratic Services 
Committee held on 2 April 2014. 
  

 

 
5 Councillor Consultation On City & County of Swansea Future ICT 

Services. 
5 - 6 

 
6 Amendments to the Council Constitution & to the Councillors 

Handbook. 
7 - 39 

 
7 Delivery of Agendas to Councillors. 40 - 42 
 
8 Update on Annual Reports. 43 - 48 
 
9 Date of Next Meeting.  
 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal, Democratic Services & Procurement 
Thursday, 9 July 2014 

Contact: Democratic Services – 01792 637292  
 
 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\8\AI00008826\$nslghbtn.doc 

Disclosures of Interest 

 
To receive Disclosures of Interest from Councillors and Officers 

 

Councillors 

 
Councillors Interests are made in accordance with the provisions of the 
Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea.  You must 
disclose orally to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest. 
 
NOTE: You are requested to identify the Agenda Item / Minute No. / Planning 
Application No. and Subject Matter to which that interest relates and to enter 
all declared interests on the sheet provided for that purpose at the meeting. 
 
1. If you have a Personal Interest as set out in Paragraph 10 of the 

Code, you MAY STAY, SPEAK AND VOTE unless it is also a 
Prejudicial Interest.  

 
2. If you have a Personal Interest which is also a Prejudicial Interest as 

set out in Paragraph 12 of the Code, then subject to point 3 below, you 
MUST WITHDRAW from the meeting (unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Standards Committee) 

 
3. Where you have a Prejudicial Interest you may attend the meeting but 

only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are 
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether 
under a statutory right or otherwise.  In such a case, you must 
withdraw from the meeting immediately after the period for 
making representations, answering questions, or giving evidence 
relating to the business has ended, and in any event before further 
consideration of the business begins, whether or not the public are 
allowed to remain in attendance for such consideration (Paragraph 14 
of the Code). 

 
4. Where you have agreement from the Monitoring Officer that the 

information relating to your Personal Interest is sensitive information, 
as set out in Paragraph 16 of the Code of Conduct, your obligation to 
disclose such information is replaced with an obligation to disclose the 
existence of a personal interest and to confirm that the Monitoring 
Officer has agreed that the nature of such personal interest is sensitive 
information. 

 
5. If you are relying on a grant of a dispensation by the Standards 

Committee, you must, before the matter is under consideration: 
 

i) Disclose orally both the interest concerned and the existence of 
the dispensation; and 

ii) Before or immediately after the close of the meeting give written 
notification to the Authority containing: 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\8\AI00008826\$nslghbtn.doc 

a) Details of the prejudicial interest; 
b) Details of the business to which the prejudicial interest 

relates; 
c) Details of, and the date on which, the dispensation was 

granted; and  
d) Your signature 

 

Officers 

 
Financial Interests 
 
1. If an Officer has a financial interest in any matter which arises for 

decision at any meeting to which the Officer is reporting or at which the 
Officer is in attendance involving any member of the Council and /or 
any third party the Officer shall declare an interest in that matter and 
take no part in the consideration or determination of the matter and 
shall withdraw from the meeting while that matter is considered.  Any 
such declaration made in a meeting of a constitutional body shall be 
recorded in the minutes of that meeting.  No Officer shall make a report 
to a meeting for a decision to be made on any matter in which s/he has 
a financial interest. 

 
2. A “financial interest” is defined as any interest affecting the financial 

position of the Officer, either to his/her benefit or to his/her detriment.  It 
also includes an interest on the same basis for any member of the 
Officers family or a close friend and any company firm or business from 
which an Officer or a member of his/her family receives any 
remuneration.  There is no financial interest for an Officer where a 
decision on a report affects all of the Officers of the Council or all of the 
officers in a Department or Service. 

 

Page 2



 
 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
MINUTES OF THE DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 
HELD AT COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC CENTRE, SWANSEA. ON 

WEDNESDAY, 2 APRIL 2014 
AT 5.00 PM 

 

 

 
 

PRESENT: Councillor M H Jones (Chair) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

Councillor(s) 
 

R A Clay 
A C S Colburn 

A M Cook 
N J Davies 
 

D J Lewis 
P M Meara 
 

Also Present: 
 
Councillor C Richards – Councillor Support and Development Member Champion 
and Deputy Leader of the Council. 
 
Officers: 
 
H Evans     –  Head of Democratic Services 
A Lowe      –  Councillor Support Officer 
T Meredith  – Deputy Head of Legal, Democratic Services and Procurement 
J Tinker      -  Democratic Services Coordinator 
 

42 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R Francis-Davies, E T 
Kirchner, A S Lewis and K E Marsh. 
 

43 DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTEREST. 
 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of 
Swansea, the following interest was declared:- 
 
Councillor C Richards declared a personal interest in Minute 45 “Review of 
Councillors Handbook” and 46 ““Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales Annual 
Report” as she was in receipt of a Senior Salary. 
 

44 MINUTES. 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Democratic Services Committee meeting held 
on 19 February 2014 be approved as a correct record. 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Minutes of the Democratic Services Committee (Wednesday, 2 April 2014) 
Cont’d 

 

 
 
 

2 

45 REVIEW OF COUNCILLORS HANDBOOK. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services submitted a report regarding the review of the 
Councillors Handbook. The minor amendments and issues that needed to be 
considered as outlined in Appendix A of the report were considered.  It was 
suggested that the wording in paragraph 6.3.1 be further amended to clarify that 
these meetings may also be convened at the Councillors’ request and that these are 
to be held in a Council Building. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 
1) The amendments as indicated in Appendix 1 of the report, together with the 
 additional amendment as suggested above in relation to Section A of the 
 Councillors Handbook be endorsed and submitted to Council for approval. 
 

46 INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR WALES ANNUAL REPORT - 
FEBRUARY 2014. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services presented a report which outlined the content of 
the Independent Remuneration Panel Annual Report of February 2014. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be NOTED  
 

47 VERBAL REPORT FROM FRANK CUTHBERT, HEAD OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
DEMOCRACY, WELSH GOVERNMENT. 
 
Frank Cuthbert gave an insight to the Committee of the work undertaken in his role 
of Head of Local Government Democracy at the Welsh Government.  He outlined 
that this work involved various payments, duties and functions of elected members 
together with scrutiny boundaries.  Part of this role was developing the introduction 
of various proposals as the result of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 
which included Councillors Annual Reports, training and development and personal 
reviews.  Further guidance would be produced shortly in respect of remote 
attendance of members at meetings and the new procedure in respect of family 
absences.  As a result of the Williams Commission boundary reviews would be 
undertaken and research was taking place in respect of the different Cabinet 
systems used by the various authorities. 
 
Questions were asked in respect of the Cabinet review and Scrutiny Functions. 
 
Frank Cuthbert was thanked for attending the Committee 
 
 
The meeting ended at 6.10p.m. 
 

CHAIR 

Page 4



Report of the ICT Strategic Performance Manager 
 

Democratic Services Committee – 16 July 2014 
 

COUNCILLOR CONSULTATION ON CCS FUTURE ICT SERVICES 
 

Purpose: 
 

To update Councillors on the feedback received 
during consultation during May 2014 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 

For Information only. 
 

Report Author: Jo Harley 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 With the termination of the ICT Capgemini contract in December 2015, all key 

users have been consulted with to determine their future ICT requirements.  
Questions were emailed to all Councillors as part of this consultation exercise. 

 
1.2 Councillors were invited to respond by email or attend one of three (3) drop in 

session where these could be discussed. 
 
2. Summary of Responses 
 
2.1 72 Councillors contacted; 

4 responded by email; 
4 attended the drop in sessions. 

 
3. Questions Asked and Summary of Answers Received 
 
3.1 Question 1 

Are you satisfied with the current arrangements in place for ICT, does it meet 
your requirements, what aspects would you want to change and why? 

 
Summary of Answer 
Councillors felt that broadly speaking it need however the systems needed up 
grading to latest versions and out of hours access was a requirement for their 
roles.  A requirement for conference calls or on-line meetings internally and 
externally was also identified. 

 
3.2 Question 2 

Are there any aspects of the current ICT arrangement that you feel limit your 
ability to carry out Council business effectively. 

 
Summary of Answer 
General feeling that there were no limitations apart from the lack of out of 
hours support when systems go down. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



3.3 Question 3 
Currently Elected Members receive an allowance to purchase their own ICT 
equipment.  Council services are accessed remotely using CITIRX.  Does this 
service meet your needs? 

 
Summary of Answer 
The Councillors who use CITRIX find it easy to use.  Some have an issue with 
printing.  Those Councillors who do not use CITRIX don’t because they 
haven’t got the link.  It was explained that the link was in their induction packs.  
Any queries for information should be directed to Members Support. 

 
3.4 Question 4 

The Council provides computer facilities at Civic Centre offices for Elected 
Members, there are also arrangements in place to bring your own device and 
connect to Council network.  Does this arrangement meet your needs? 

 
Summary of Answer 
This does meet all their requirements where they use these facilities.  WIFI 
access and WIFI printing would be useful for the future. 

 
3.5 Question 5 

Are you aware how to access ICT Training provided by the Council?  (For 
example, Microsoft Office, Email and Calendars). 

 
Summary of Answer 
Councillors are aware of the training available. 

 
3.6 Question 6 

What sort of ICT service would you like to see in the future? 
 

Summary of Answer 
Mobile working, hot desking and home working to be enabled.  Greater use of 
open source software.  A dependable service available during the weekends 
and evenings. 

 
6. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
6.1 Not applicable 
 
7. Financial Implications 
 
7.1 Not Applicable 
 
8. Legal Implications 
 
8.1 Not Applicable 

Page 6



Report of the Head of Democratic Services 
 

Democratic Services Committee - 16 July 2014 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNCIL CONSTITUTION & TO THE 
COUNCILLORS HANDBOOK 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Attached is a draft report for Council relating to the above. 
 
2. Financial Implications 
 
2.1 As identified within report. 
 
3. Legal Implications 
 
3.1 As identified within report. 
 
4. Recommendations.  It is recommended that: 
 
4.1 The draft report be agreed and recommended by the Democratic 

Services Committee to Council for adoption. 
 
 

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Legal Officer: Patrick Arran / Tracey Meredith 

 
  

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Joint Report of the Presiding Member, Monitoring Officer and 
Head of Democratic Services 

 
Council – 12 August 2014 

 
AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNCIL CONSTITUTION & TO THE 

COUNCILLORS HANDBOOK 
 

Purpose: To make amendments in order to simplify, improve and / 
or add to the Council Constitution / Councillors Handbook. 
 

Policy Framework: None. 
 

Reason for Decision: A decision of Council is required to change the Council 
Constitution / Councillors Handbook. 
 

Consultation: Finance, Legal 
 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 
 

  

1) The recommendations listed in each of the appendices be approved and 
adopted: 
 
Appendix A - Family Absence for Councillors; 
Appendix B – Remote Attendance at Meetings; 
Appendix C – Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor Protocol. 
 

  

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Legal Officer: Patrick Arran / Tracey Meredith 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 In compliance with the Local Government Act 2000, the City & County 

of Swansea has adopted a Council Constitution.  A number of issues 
have arisen since adoption and in order to maintain the aims, principles 
and procedures set out in Articles 1 and 15 of the Council Constitution, 
it is proposed that the amendments set out below should be made to 
the Constitution. 

 
2. Delegated Minor Corrections to the Council Constitution 
 
2.1 There are no delegated minor corrections to the Council 

Constitution. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



3. Amendments to the Council Constitution 
 
3.1 This report outlines a number of suggested amendments to the 

Council Constitution.  The amendments are within the following 
areas of the Council Constitution: 

 
a) Family Absence for Councillors - Part 2 “Article 5 – 

Chairing the Council”; Part 3 “Scheme of Delegation”; Part 
3 “Terms of Reference” and Part 4 “Council Procedure 
Rules” 

 
b) Remote Attendance at Meetings - Part 4 “Council 

Procedure Rules”. 
 
4. Amendments to the Councillors Handbook 
 
4.1 This report outlines a number of suggested amendments to the 

Councillors Handbook.  The amendments are within the following 
areas of the Councillors Handbook. 

 
a) Election of Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor Protocol. 

 
5. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
5.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening process took place 

prior to the consultation period.  The outcome indicated that it was low 
priority and a full report was not required. 

 
6. Financial Implications 
 
6.1 There are no specific financial implications associated with this 

report. 
 
7. Legal Implications 
 
7.1 There are no specific legal implications associated with this 

report.  The amended version of the Council Constitution will be 
available at www.swansea.gov.uk/Democracy 

 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Appendices: 

Appendix A Family Absence for Councillors 

Appendix B Remote Attendance at Meetings 

Appendix C Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor Protocol 

 
 

Page 9



Appendix A 
 

FAMILY ABSENCE FOR COUNCILLORS 
 

Purpose: 
 

To inform Councillors of the implementation of 
new regulations which provide Councillors with 
an entitlement to 5 types of Family Absence.  To 
amend the Council Constitution so as to support 
these new arrangements. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 

To comply with Part 2 “Family Absence for 
Councillors” of the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2011. 
 

Consultation: 
 

Finance, Legal. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 

  

1) A Family Absence Complaints Committee be established; 

  

2) The Committee consist of 3 Councillors (which cannot include the Chair 
of Council (Presiding Member)) and be politically balanced; 

  

3) The Terms of Reference of the Family Absence Complaints Committee 
as outlined in Appendix A2 of the report be adopted; 

  

4) The Terms of Reference of the Democratic Services Committee be 
amended to include the sentence as outlined in Appendix A2 of the 
report; 

  

5) The Council Procedure Rules be amended so as to add a new 
procedure relating to “41 Family Absence for Councillor” as outlined in 
Appendix A3 of this report and for the other Council Procedure Rules 
to be re-numbered accordingly; 

  

6) Any further required consequential amendments as outlined in 
Appendix A2 a result of Family Absence for Councillors be made to the 
Council Constitution; 

  

7) Delegated authority be granted to the Head of Democratic Services to 
carry out the duties required under the Regulations. 

  

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith 

 
 

Page 10



1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 “The Measure” 

introduced a system of Family Absence for Councillors to enable those 
who have babies or become responsible for looking after children to be 
able to continue as Councillors with a recognised and legitimate 
absence, in an open fashion, rather than be potentially subject to 
criticism for not fulfilling their duties.  This report seeks to enable the 
Family Absence element of the Measure. 

 
1.2 The Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales Supplementary 

Report - Family Absence – 11 March 2014 is shown in Appendix A1 
sets out a Councillors entitlement to receive salaries during periods of 
family absence. 

 
1.3 The regulations aim to encourage a greater diversity of people seeking 

to stand for election. 
 
2. Family Absence - Part 2 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 

2011 
 
2.1 The Measure provides that a Councillor who is entitled to a period of 

family absence may be absent from meetings of the Council during that 
period.  If the Councillor is a member of the Executive, the Councillor 
may be absent from meetings of the Executive during that period. 

 
2.2 The Measure also provides that a period of family absence is to be 

disregarded for the purpose of calculating the 6 consecutive month 
absence period under Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972, 
which provides for the automatic vacation of the office of Councillor due 
to a failure to attend a meeting of an Authority for a period of 6 months. 

 
2.3 The Measure creates an entitlement to five types of family absence: 
 

a) Maternity absence - For the mother of a child, granted up to a 
maximum of 26 weeks; 

 
b) Newborn absence - For the parent of a child other than the 

mother, for a period of up to 2 consecutive weeks to be taken 
within a period of 56 days beginning with the birth of a child; 

 
c) Adopter’s absence - For the adopter of a child (whether 

individually or jointly with another person) for a period of up to 2 
consecutive weeks; 

 
d) New adoption absence - For the partner of an adopter or 

supporting the person who is to adopt the child for a period of up 
to 2 consecutive weeks; 

 

Page 11



e) Parental absence - For a Councillor who becomes responsible 
for a child (and does not meet the conditions for newborn 
absence, adopter’s absence or new adoption absence), for a 
period of up to 3 months. 

 
2.4 The entitlement created by the Measure is subject to a Councillor 

satisfying conditions prescribed by Welsh Ministers in subsequent 
regulations.  The Family Absence for Members of Local Authorities 
(Wales) Regulations 2013, “the Regulations”, came into force on 5 
December 2013. 

 
2.5 The Explanatory Memorandum accompanying the Regulations explains 

that the Regulations enable the introduction of family absence 
entitlement for Councillors and that giving birth, adopting children or 
giving support to a partner in that position, is a legitimate reason for 
Councillors being unable to fulfil their duties and is an important equal 
opportunities reform. 

 
3. Requirements to be satisfied when claiming Maternity Absence 
 
3.1 For the purposes of section 24(1) of the Measure, the prescribed 

conditions are that: 
 

(a) No later than the end of 15 weeks before the expected week of 
childbirth, or, if that is not reasonably practicable, as soon as is 
reasonably practicable, the member has given written notice to 
the Head of Democratic Services of: 

 
(i) That member’s pregnancy; 
(ii) The expected week of childbirth; 
(iii) The date on which the member intends the maternity 

absence to start; and 
(iv) The duration of the period of maternity absence the 

member intends to take, if less than 26 weeks; 
 

(b) The member has, if requested to do so by the Head of 
Democratic Services, provided the Head of Democratic Services 
with a certificate from a registered medical practitioner or a 
registered midwife stating the expected week of childbirth; 

 
(c) Where the member wishes to vary the start of the maternity 

absence which has been specified under paragraph (a)(iii), the 
member has given the Head of Democratic Services written 
notice of the new start date at least one week before the date 
specified under paragraph (a)(iii), or at least one week before 
the new date, whichever is the earlier, or, if that is not 
reasonably practicable, as soon as is reasonably practicable; 
and 

 
 

Page 12



(d) Where the member wishes to vary the duration of the maternity 
absence, the member has given the Head of Democratic 
Services written notice of the new duration at least one week 
before the expected end of the period of absence in accordance 
with the duration specified under paragraph (a)(iv), or at least 
one week before the new intended end of the period of absence, 
whichever is the earlier, or if that is not reasonably practicable, 
as soon as is reasonably practicable. 

 
4. Requirements to be satisfied when claiming Newborn Absence 
 
4.1 For the purposes of section 25(1) of the Measure, the prescribed 

conditions are that the Member: 
 

(a) Is either: 
 

(i) The child’s father and has, or expects to have, 
responsibility for the upbringing of the child; or 

(ii) Married to, the civil partner or the partner of the child’s 
mother, but is not the child’s father and has, or expects to 
have the main responsibility (apart from any responsibility 
of the mother) for the upbringing of the child; and 

 
(b) Gives the Head of Democratic Services written notice of the date 

the member intends the period of newborn absence to start. 
 

(2) A member is to be treated as having satisfied the condition in 
paragraph (1)(a)(ii) if that member would have satisfied the 
condition but for the fact that the child’s mother has died. 

 
(3) A member is to be treated as having satisfied either of the 

conditions in paragraph (1)(a) if they would have satisfied the 
condition but for the fact that the child was stillborn after 24 
weeks of pregnancy or has died. 

 
5. Requirements to be satisfied when claiming Adopter’s Absence 
 
5.1 For the purposes of section 26(1) of the Measure, the prescribed 

conditions are that the Member: 
 

(a) Is the child’s adopter; and 
 

(b) Gives the Head of Democratic Services written notice of the date 
the member intends the period of adopter’s absence to start. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



6. Requirements to be satisfied when claiming New Adoption 
Absence 

 
6.1 For the purposes of section 27(1) of the Measure, the prescribed 

conditions are that the Member: 
 

(a) Is married to, the civil partner or the partner of the child’s 
adopter; 

 
(b) Has, or expects to have, the main responsibility (apart from the 

responsibility of the adopter) for the upbringing of the child; and 
 

(c) Gives the Head of Democratic Services written notice of the date 
the member intends the period of adopter’s absence to start. 

 
7. Requirements to be satisfied when claiming Parental Absence 
 
7.1 For the purposes of section 28(1) of the Measure, the prescribed 

conditions are that the Member: 
 

(a) Could not satisfy the prescribed conditions under Parts 2 to 4 of 
these Regulations; 

 
(b) Has, or expects to have, responsibility for the care of a child; 

 
(c) Provides the head of democratic services with written notice of: 

 
(i) Their intention to take parental absence; 
(ii) The date on which the member intends the parental 

absence to start; 
(iii) The duration of the intended parental absence; and 
(iv) Whether the absence is intended to be taken as a single 

period or as a series of absences; 
 

(d) If requested to do so by the Head of Democratic Services, 
provides the Head of Democratic Services with evidence in 
relation to the extent of the responsibility for the child; and 

 
(e) Where the parental absence is to be taken as a series of 

absences, gives the Head of Democratic Services advance 
written notice of the intended start date and duration of each 
period of parental absence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



8. Record Keeping of Family Absence 
 
8.1 The Head of Democratic Services must maintain a record for at least 

10 years from the date it is made of all: 
 

a) Notifications made by Councillors of periods of family absence; 
and 

 
b) Periods of family absence taken by Councillors. 

 
8.2 The Head of Democratic Services must inform the Chair of Council 

(Presiding Member), Leaders of each Political Group and the Chair of 
Democratic Services Committee that a Councillor intends taking a 
period of family absence. 

 
9. Cancellation of Family Absence 
 
9.1 Paragraph 34 of the Regulations makes provision for the Council to 

cancel periods of family absence where the Head of Democratic 
Services has reasonable grounds to suspect that a Councillor is not 
entitled to the absence.  In such circumstance, the Head of Democratic 
Services should inform the Local Authority and provide all relevant 
information so that the Authority can consider whether or not to cancel 
the Councillors period of family absence. 

 
9.2 In order to satisfy this Regulation, it is proposed that the Democratic 

Services Committee be designated the body to determine whether or 
not the Councillors period of family absence should be cancelled. 

 
9.3 If the Democratic Services Committee decides to exercise its power 

under Regulation 34, then the Head of Democratic Services must 
provide the Councillor with a written notice setting out: 

 
a) The decision to cancel or bring to an end a period of family 

absence; and 
 

b) The date from which the Councillor must return from the period 
of family absence. 

 
9.4 Where a Councillor has failed to return from a period of family absence 

on the date specified in the notice provided, the Authority may withhold 
that Councillor’s Remuneration.  It is proposed that this also be a 
matter for the Democratic Services Committee to consider. 

 
10. Complaints against a decision to cancel Family Absence 
 
10.1 Regulation 35 makes provision for a Councillor to complain in writing to 

the Head of Democratic Services regarding a decision made to cancel 
a period of family absence. 

 

Page 15



10.2 The complaint must be received by the Head of Democratic Services 
within 28 days of the Councillor being notified of the Authority’s 
decision. 

 
10.3 The Head of Democratic Services must refer any complaint received 

within the period specified to the Chair of Council (Presiding Member). 
 
10.4 Regulation 36 states that the Authority must appoint a Panel to 

determine any such complaints.  The Panel must consist of 3 
Councillors.  The Chair of Council (Presiding Member) may not be 
appointed to the Panel. 

 
10.5 It is proposed that a politically balanced, 3 member Family Absence 

Complaints Committee be established and that Council allows its 
membership to be determined by the relevant Political Group Leaders. 

 
10.6 The Panel (Family Absence Complaints Committee) may: 
 

a) Confirm the decision of the Local Authority (Democratic Services 
Committee; or 

 
b) Substitute its own decision as to the Councillor’s entitlement to a 

period of family absence in accordance with the Regulations; 
 
10.7 The decision of the Panel (Family Absence Complaints Committee) is 

final. 
 
11. Amendments to the Council Constitution 
 
11.1 Regulations 37 and 39 require the Council to amend its Standing 

Orders (Council Constitution) covering the matters contained within 
both Regulations. 

 
11.2 Regulation 38 provides that a Councillor must obtain the permission of 

the Chair of Council (Presiding Member) before attending any meeting 
or performing any duty when on maternity or parental absence.  He in 
turn must inform the Leaders of each Political Group before granting 
permission. 

 
11.3 A Councillor may complain in writing to the Head of Democratic 

Services regarding any refusal by the Chair of Council (Presiding 
Member).  The Head of Democratic Services must refer a complaint to 
the Chair of Council (Presiding Member). 

 
11.4 A Panel must be constituted to determine any such complaint. 
 
11.5 It is proposed that the Family Absence Complaints Committee consider 

such complaints. 
 
 

Page 16



11.6 The Panel (Family Absence Complaints Committee) may: 
 

a) Confirm the decision of the Chair of Council (Presiding Member); 
or 

 
b) Substitute its own decision as to the Councillor attending any 

meeting or performing any duty. 
 
11.7 The decision of the Panel (Family Absence Complaints Committee) is 

final. 
 
11.8 Regulation 39 requires Standing Orders (Council Constitution) to make 

provision as to the extent of the duties, if any, which remain applicable 
to Councillors during a period of family absence. 

 
11.9 The responsibilities of Councillors are complex, involving decision 

making and carrying out Scrutiny duties.  In addition to their Council 
work, Councillors are often members of various other organisations 
such as School Governing Bodies, Community Centre Management 
Committees, other Public Sector Bodies, Third Sector Organisations 
and Community / Town Councillors.  Councillors also undertake a 
significant amount of Electoral Division duties acting on behalf of local 
groups or representing residents etc.  It is therefore extremely difficult 
to specify clearly which meetings or activities a Councillor could 
undertake. 

 
11.10 For Maternity Absence or Parental Absence the duties applicable shall 

be those determined by the Chair of Council (Presiding Member) or the 
Family Absence Complaints Committee (in the event of an appeal).  
For all other types of Family Absence it shall be such duties as the 
individual Councillor concerned choses to undertake in consultation 
with the Chair of Council (Presiding Member). 

 
11.11 The proposed terms of reference of the Family Absence Complaints 

Committee are set out in Appendix A1. 
 
11.12 The proposed amendments to the Council Procedure Rules are set out 

in Appendix A2. 
 
12. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
12.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening process took place 

prior to the consultation period.  The outcome indicated that it was low 
priority and a full report was not required. 

 
13. Financial Implications 
 
13.1 All costs associated with this report will be met from within existing 

budgets. 
 

Page 17



14. Legal Implications 
 
14.1 None. 
 
 
Background Papers: 

• Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 
 
 
Appendices: 
 

Appendix A1 Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales Supplementary 
Report - Family Absence – 11 March 2014. 

Appendix A2 Amendments / Additions to the Council Constitution. 

Appendix A3 Amendment to Council Procedure Rules – “41.  Family 
Absence for Councillors”. 

 
 
  

Page 18



Appendix A1 
 

Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales Supplementary Report 
Family Absence – 11 March 2014 

 
Dear Colleague  
 
1. This constitutes a final Supplementary Report of the Independent 

Remuneration Panel for Wales (the Panel) in accordance with Section 
147 of the Local Government Measure (Wales) 2011 (the Measure).  It 
relates to payments made to elected members of County and County 
Borough Councils who have been granted Family Absence by their 
respective local authority. 

 
2. In November 2013 the National Assembly for Wales approved the 

regulations relating to Family Absence for elected members of principal 
local authorities in Wales.  The Panel has considered the implications 
of these regulations on the remuneration of such members who are 
taking absence from their role as a member under the terms set out in 
the regulations.  The Panel, after taking account of responses to the 
draft of this Report, has concluded that: 

 
3. Generally, a decision taken by a principal authority under these 

regulations which relates to a member who is a basic salary holder is 
not a matter for the Panel, as the Panel considers that the current 
statutory position in respect of the absence of a member (the “six 
month rule”) coincides with the maximum period of absence set out in 
the regulations. 

 
Therefore a member taking Family Absence would be entitled to retain 
the basic salary. 

 
Nevertheless, there could be instances where the member concerned 
has already accumulated absences prior the commencement of an 
agreed Family Absence.  The determinations set out below take 
account of such a situation. 

 
4. However, the Panel considers that senior salary holders potentially 

would be affected by absences that are within the terms of the 
regulations.  The determinations set out the arrangements in such 
cases. 

 
Determinations 
 
a) A member is entitled to retain a basic salary when taking family 

absence under the regulations irrespective of the attendance record 
immediately preceding the commencement of the family absence. 

 
 

Page 19



b) When a senior salary holder is eligible for family absence, he/she will 
be able to continue to receive the salary for the duration of the 
absence.  It is a matter for the authority to decide whether or not to 
make a substitute appointment. 

 
c) The member substituting for a senior salary holder taking family 

absence will be eligible to be paid a senior salary, if the authority so 
decides. 

 
d) If the paid substitution results in the authority exceeding the maximum 

number of senior salaries which relates to it, as set out in the Panel's 
Annual Report, an addition to the maximum will be allowed for the 
duration of the substitution. 

 
However, this will not apply to the Isle of Anglesey or Merthyr Tydfil 
Councils if it would result in the number of senior salaries exceeding 
fifty percent of the Council membership. Specific approval of Welsh 
Ministers is required in such circumstances.  

 
e) When an authority agrees a paid substitution for family absence, the 

Panel must be informed, within 14 days of the date of the decision, of 
the details including the particular post and the duration of the 
substitution. 

 
f) The schedule of remuneration must be amended to reflect the 

implication of the family absence. 
 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Richard Penn 
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 20



Appendix A2 
 

Amendments / Additions to the Council Constitution 
 
Part 2 - Article 5 “Chairing the Council” 
 
Add the following to Paragraph 5.1 of Article 5. 
 
“To undertake the requirements of Family Absence by Councillors in line with 
the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 and the Local Authorities 
(Wales) Regulations 2013”. 
 
Part 3 - “Scheme of Delegation” 
 
Add the following to Paragraph 1.3.13 “Local Choice Functions”. 
 

No Function Provision of Act or Statutory Instrument Delegated To 

J10 Family 
Absence 

Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 and 
the Local Authorities (Wales) Regulations 2013 

Council 

 
Part 3 - Proposed Terms of Reference for the Family Absence 
Complaints Committee 
 
“i) To determine a complaint made by a Councillor regarding the cancellation 

or bringing to an end a period of family absence by the Authority; 
 
ii) To determine any such complaint in accordance with Regulation 36 of 

the Family Absence for Members of Local Authorities (Wales) 
Regulations 2013; 

 
iii) To determine a complaint made by a Councillor on maternity absence 

or parental absence regarding a decision made by the Chair of Council 
(Presiding Member) as to the Councillor attending any meeting or 
performing any duty; 

 
iv) To determine any such complaint in accordance with Regulation 38 of 

the Family Absence for Members of Local Authorities (Wales) 
Regulations 2013”. 

 
Part 3 - Proposed Additions to the Terms of Reference of the Democratic 
Services Committee 
 
“5) To determine whether or not the Councillors period of family absence 

should be cancelled in accordance with Regulation 34 of the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011. 

 
6) To determine whether or not to withhold a Councillor’s Remuneration 

should they fail to return following period of family absence on the date 
specified in the notice provided”. 

 

Page 21



Appendix A3 
 

Amendment to Part 4 “Council Procedure Rules” 
 
41. Family Absence for Councillors 
 

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 provides Councillors 
with legal entitlement to periods of Family Absence.  The Local 
Authorities (Wales) Regulations 2013 require Local Authorities to have 
standing orders securing requirements contained within Regulations 38 and 39. 

 
a) A Councillor on maternity absence or parental absence may, subject to 

paragraphs 41b) to 41f) below: 
 

i) Attend particular meetings; 
ii) Attend particular descriptions of meetings; 
iii) Perform particular duties; or 
iv) Perform duties of a particular description. 

 
b) The Councillor must obtain the permission of the Chair of Council 

(Presiding Member) before attending any meeting or performing any duty. 
 
c) The Chair of Council (Presiding Member), must inform the Leaders of 

each Political Group of the Council before granting permission under 
paragraph 41b) above. 

 
d) A Councillor may complain in writing to the Head of Democratic 

Services regarding a refusal of permission under paragraph 41b) 
above. 

 
e) The Head of Democratic Services must refer a complaint under 

paragraph 41d) above to the Chair of Council (Presiding Member). 
 
f) The Family Absence Complaints Committee must determine a 

complaint made under paragraph 41d) above. 
 
g) The Family Absence Complaints Committee may: 
 

i) Confirm the decision of the Chair of Council (Presiding Member) 
made under paragraph 41b) above; or 

ii) Substitute its own decision as to the Councillor attending any 
meeting or performing any duty. 

 
h) For Maternity Absence or Parental Absence the duties applicable shall 

be those determined by the Chair of Council (Presiding Member) or the 
Family Absence Complaints Committee (in the event of an appeal).  
For all other types of family absence it shall be such duties as the 
individual Councillor concerned choses to undertake in consultation 
with the Chair of Council (Presiding Member). 

  

Page 22



Appendix B 
 

REMOTE ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 

Purpose: 
 

To inform Councillors of the provisions of 
Section 4 “Remote Attendance at Meetings” of 
the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 
and to make any necessary amendments to the 
Council Constitution. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 

To comply with Section 4 “Remote Attendance 
at Meetings” of the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2011. 
 

Consultation: 
 

Finance, Legal. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 

  

1) The provisions of Section 4 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2011 and associated guidance be noted; 

  

2) The provision of Remote Attendance be not implemented at this time: 

  

3) The Head of Democratic Services in consultation with the Head of 
Legal, Democratic Services and Procurement and Presiding Member 
make all necessary amendments to the Council’s Constitution. 

  

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 “The Measure” 

introduced the possibility of remote attendance at Council meetings.  
This was intended to make it easier for those who, for instance, may 
have to travel long distances, those with domestic responsibilities and 
those in employment to attend. 

 
1.2 Statutory guidance made under Section 4 of the Measure has now 

been issued.  This guidance is shown at Appendix B1. 
 
2. Section 4 “Remote Attendance at Meetings” of the Measure 
 
2.1 Section 4 “Remote Attendance at Meetings” of the Local Government 

(Wales) Measure 2011 states: 
 

Page 23



a) Section 4 provides that attendance at a Council Meeting is not 
limited to a meeting of persons who are all present in the same 
place.  By “Council meeting” the guidance includes any 
Committee or Sub Committee of the Council as well as the full 
Council itself.  However, the section places certain limitations as 
to what constitutes remote attendance. 

 
b) Any Councillor attending a meeting remotely (“Remote 

Attendee”) must, when they are speaking, be able to be seen 
and heard by the Councillors who are attending the meeting at 
the place where the meeting is held (“Councillors in Actual 
Attendance”) and the Remote Attendee must, in turn, be able to 
see and hear those in actual attendance.  In addition, a Remote 
Attendee must be able to be seen and heard by, and in turn see 
and hear any members of the public entitled to attend the 
meeting and who exercise a right to speak at the meeting.  If 
there is more than one remote location, all the Councillors 
attending remotely must be able to hear, but not necessarily see 
the other Remote Attendees. 

 
c) Meetings can only take place remotely if not prohibited by the 

Local Authority’s Standing Orders / Rules of Procedure.  It is 
therefore up to each Local Authority to decide whether it wishes 
to make Remote Attendance available.  The Standing Orders / 
Rules must also secure that any meeting with Remote Attendees 
is not quorate if there are less than 30% of those eligible to 
attend present at the main meeting place.  Authorities may set a 
higher quota for attendance at the main meeting place if they 
wish. 

 
d) Each Local Authority may make other Standing Orders / Rules in 

relation to Remote Attendance at Meetings and must have 
regard to any guidance given by Welsh Ministers.  Our intention 
is to publish this guidance at the same time as the section of the 
Measure is brought into force. 

 
3. What is Remote Attendance? 
 
3.1 Remote Attendance allows Councillors to attend a Council Meeting 

without having to be present at the published meeting place.  This is 
achieved by a form of video conferencing subject to certain limitations.  
In particular, any Councillor attending a meeting remotely must, when 
speaking, be able to be seen and heard by those Councillors in actual 
attendance.  In addition, members of the public taking part in a 
Committee meeting must be able to be seen and heard by the remote 
attendees and vice versa.  Finally, if Remote Attendees are at more 
than one remote location, all the Councillors attending remotely must 
be able to at least hear the other remote attendees. 

 

Page 24



3.2 In practice, the Remote Attendance requirements are very specific and 
will be technically difficult to achieve.  The Welsh Government 
acknowledges that there are technical and staffing implications 
associated with the implementation of Remote Attendance as 
Councillors could attend remotely from a Council Office or any other 
location with the correct IT equipment and sufficient broadband 
connection. 

 
3.3 The need to recognise equality between the Welsh and English 

languages also has great significance when considering Remote 
Attendance.  If the City and County of Swansea chose to utilise the 
provision of Remote Attendance then it would have to ensure that its 
use was in compliance with the Welsh Language Scheme. 

 
4. Is Remote Attendance at Meetings relevant within the City and 

County of Swansea? 
 
4.1 As stated above, the Measure introduced the possibility of remote 

attendance at Council meetings.  The issue of Remote Attendance at 
Meetings is discretionary.  This was intended to make it easier for 
those who, for instance, may have to travel long distances, those with 
domestic responsibilities and those in employment to attend. 

 
4.2 Remote Attendance may be of particular interest to large rural local 

Authorities such as Ceredigion and Powys where Councillors are 
required to travel long distances to attend Council Meetings.  For 
geographically Large Authorities, Remote Attendance will allow a 
significant reduction in travel time and expenses for Councillors and, in 
the longer term, may encourage under represented groups to consider 
standing as a Councillor. 

 
4.3 However, the City and County of Swansea does not have significant 

geographical challenges.  The Authority is relatively geographically 
small with good road and rail links.  Councillors are able to travel to the 
Civic Centre within a reasonable time regardless of their home 
address.  Therefore, there appear to be little benefit for Swansea to 
utilise Remote Attendance balanced against the cost of implementing it 
and maintaining it. 

 
4.4 Additionally, there is currently no known demand for Remote 

Attendance by Councillors of the City and County of Swansea. 
 
5. Amendments to the Council Constitution 
 
5.1 The final Statutory Guidance from Welsh Government provides that 

“Meetings can only take place remotely if not prohibited by the Local 
Authority’s Standing Orders / Rules of Procedure.  It is therefore up to 
each Local Authority to decide whether it wishes to make Remote 
Attendance available. 

 

Page 25



5.2 It is therefore proposed that a paragraph be added to the Council 
Procedure Rules stating that the Authority prohibits Remote 
Attendance at Meetings. 

 
6. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
6.1 The principles of remote attendance fit well with equalities 

requirements by allowing Councillors, who may fall under one or more 
of the protected characteristics, greater access to meetings, as noted in 
section 4 above. 

 
6.2 Due to the City and County of Swansea not having significant 

geographical challenges, as the Authority is relatively geographically 
small with good road and rail links.  Councillors are able to travel to the 
Civic Centre within a reasonable time regardless of their home 
address.  In addition to this, Councillors generally have a very high 
attendance level, therefore, there appear to be little benefit for 
Swansea to utilise Remote Attendance balanced against the cost of 
implementing it and maintaining it. 

 
6.3 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening process took place 

prior to the consultation period.  The outcome indicated that it was low 
priority and a full report was not required. 

 
7. Financial Implications 
 
7.1 All costs associated with this report will be met from within existing 

budgets. 
 
8. Legal Implications 
 
8.1 The recommendations within the report comply with the requirements 

of Section 4 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011. 
 
Background Papers: 

• Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 and associated guidance. 
 
Appendices: 
 

Appendix B1 Statutory guidance made under Section 4 of the Measure. 

 
  

Page 26



Appendix B1 
 

Statutory Guidance made under Section 4 of the Local Government 
(Wales) Measure 2011 - Remote Attendance at Council Meetings 

 
1. Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 (“the Measure”) 

was intended to strengthen local democracy by, in particular, 
introducing reforms which support councillors outside of the executive 
or executive members when acting in a non-executive capacity.  One of 
these reforms, at section 4 of the Measure, was the introduction of the 
possibility of remote attendance at council meetings.  This was 
intended to make it easier for those who, for instance, may have to 
travel long distances, those with domestic responsibilities and those in 
employment to attend. 

 
2. This guidance is statutory guidance under section 4(6) of the Measure, 

to which a local authority must have regard, in relation to meetings of 
an authority attended remotely in accordance with section 4. 

 
What section 4 of the Measure says 
 
3. Section 4 provides that attendance at a council meeting is not limited to 

a meeting of persons who are all present in the same place.  By 
“council meeting” we include any committee or sub-committee of the 
council as well as the full council itself.  However, the section places 
certain limitations as to what constitutes remote attendance. 

 
4. Any member attending a meeting remotely (“remote attendee”) must, 

when they are speaking, be able to be seen and heard by the members 
who are attending the meeting at the place where the meeting is held 
(“members in actual attendance”) and the remote attendee must, in 
turn, be able to see and hear those in actual attendance.  In addition, a 
remote attendee must be able to be seen and heard by, and in turn see 
and hear any members of the public entitled to attend the meeting and 
who exercise a right to speak at the meeting.  If there is more than one 
remote location, all the members attending remotely must be able to 
hear – but not necessarily see – the other remote attendees. 

 
5. Meetings can only take place remotely if not prohibited by the local 

authority’s standing orders/rules of procedure.  It is therefore up to 
each local authority to decide whether it wishes to make remote 
attendance available.  The standing orders/rules must also secure that 
any meeting with remote attendees is not quorate if there are less than 
30% of those eligible to attend present at the main meeting place.  
Authorities may set a higher quota for attendance at the main meeting 
place if they wish. 

 
 
 

Page 27



6. Each local authority may make other standing orders/rules in relation to 
remote attendance at meetings and must have regard to any guidance 
given by Welsh Ministers.  Our intention is to publish this guidance at 
the same time as the section of the Measure is brought into force. 

 
Supporting remote attendance 
 
7. The Welsh Government accepts that there are technical and staffing 

implications connected with the introduction of remote attendance. 
Where a number of councillors are expected to attend remotely at the 
same location, probably though not necessarily in a different council 
office from the place where the meeting is held, there may be a need 
for an officer to be present, both to support the members attending 
remotely but also to ensure that the equipment needed for remote 
attendance to function is operating correctly. 

 
8. Local authorities will need to decide whether or not they wish to permit 

members of the public to be able to be present at a remote location. If 
so, an officer presence may be required to make arrangements for 
them. 

 
9. There will clearly be a need to provide appropriate training for officers 

who might become involved in remote attendance, both to familiarise 
them with the requirements of the legislation and to cover the practical 
issues involved.  The WLGA should be able to assist in this process. 

 
10. The need to recognise equality between the Welsh and English 

languages has great significance when considering remote attendance.  
Local authorities will have their own Welsh language schemes but it is 
likely that facilities will exist – or could be made available – to cater for 
members who are unable to understand Welsh.  It will be for each 
authority to ensure that any use of remote attendance is in keeping with 
their Welsh Language Scheme. 

 
11. It is also important for authorities to ensure that the needs of any 

disabled members are taken into account when considering the 
practicality of a remotely attended meeting. 

 
12. It is proposed that standing orders should contain a provision that 

members should, whenever possible, be able to participate at a 
remotely attended meeting in either Welsh or English.  However, it is 
the Welsh Government’s policy that remote attendance should not be 
permitted if, for technical or other reasons, it would not be possible to 
provide simultaneous interpretation for non-Welsh speakers attending a 
meeting where both Welsh and English will be used.  As such, local 
authorities may wish to ask members to note their language preference 
(in terms of speaking at meetings) and whether or not they would 
require simultaneous interpretation should any other participant speak 
in Welsh. 

 

Page 28



13. The Welsh Government does not take for granted that local authorities 
will possess the equipment or technological know-how to make remote 
attendance work to suit everyone.  Someone attending remotely at 
home or work may have bandwidth limitations which affect their ability 
to take part fully.  Local authorities will need to decide for themselves 
the extent to which they will invest or assist members to have the 
necessary facilities to attend remotely. 

 
14. There are times when council meetings are not open to the public, 

when confidential, or “exempt” issues – as defined in Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 – are under consideration.  It would be 
important to ensure that there are no members of the public at remote 
locations able to hear or see the proceedings during such meetings.  
Any member in remote attendance who failed to disclose that there 
were in fact persons present who were not so entitled would be in 
breach of their Code of Conduct responsibilities. 

 
15. Local authority standing orders can determine which types of meetings 

can be attended remotely.  In the first instance, practical issues might 
dictate that the number of meetings which could enjoy this facility would 
be quite limited, though over time it would be hoped that the number of 
meetings where remote attendance were possible would increase. 

 
16. The Measure requires that, for a remotely attended meeting to be 

quorate, a certain proportion of councillors must be in actual 
attendance at the meeting.  Should this be disturbed by members in 
actual attendance at the main meeting place leaving the meeting 
before it is finished, bringing about a higher than permitted proportion 
of councillors attending remotely, the chair would have no choice but to 
close the meeting. 

 
17. Standing orders should also make provision about what should happen 

if a technical difficulty results in the breakdown of the communications 
facility.  Such occurrences are not unknown in video conferenced 
meetings.  If this occurred, it is the Welsh Government’s view that the 
chair should declare a recess while the fault is addressed.  If 
necessary, the meeting would have to be abandoned and the meeting 
should not continue without the involvement of the remote members.  
Standing orders could, however, make different provision for different 
types of meetings etc., for example that a meeting taking an urgent 
decision or one which is time-limited, might either not be allowed to 
take place with remote attendees or that the meeting would proceed in 
the event of a communications failure, so that those attending remotely 
would be aware and accept that the meeting would continue and a vote 
would be taken without their attendance in the event of a 
communications failure. 

 
 
 
 

Page 29



18. Finally, there is the issue of voting.  Local authorities will have to build 
into standing orders arrangements to provide for voting to take place 
simultaneously at the main and remote location(s).  It may not always 
be possible for remotely attending members to vote electronically even 
if that is the norm in council meetings.  Standing Orders will need to 
cover this issue so that chairs of meetings are aware of the correct 
procedure to follow. 

 
  

Page 30



Appendix C 
 

LORD MAYOR AND DEPUTY LORD MAYOR PROTOCOL 
 

Purpose: To ensure that there are clear procedures in place for 
most aspects relating to the Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord 
Mayor. 
 

Policy Framework: None. 

Reason for Decision: To clarify procedure relating to Lord Mayor and Deputy 
Lord Mayor. 
 

Consultation: Legal, Finance. 

Recommendation: It is recommended that: 
 

1) The Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor Protocol as outlined in Appendix C1 of 
the report be approved and adopted and be placed within the Councillors 
Handbook; 

  

2) The Election of Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor Protocol be deleted and 
removed from the Councillors Handbook. 

  

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Legal Officer: Patrick Arran 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Access to Services: Euros Owen 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The “Election of Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor Protocol” has 

been in place for some years and has only had some light touch 
improvements over that period. 

 
1.2 Following a recent root and branch review of the Protocol, a number of 

areas have been added, so as to ensure that the Protocol covers a 
wider range of issues that may arise in relation to the Lord Mayor and 
Deputy Lord Mayor. 

 
1.3 Those issues relate to: 
 

i) Adding the Letters Patent which granted Swansea Lord Mayor 
Status; 

 
ii) An eligibility paragraph for becoming Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord 

Mayor; 
 
 

Page 31



iii) A protocol for determining who becomes Lord Mayor / Deputy 
Lord Mayor when Councillors share the same period of service; 

 
iv) A section ensuring that in the year of a Local Government 

Election, additional names are considered for appropriateness; 
 

v) An addition to the Terms of Deferment of a term of Office; 
 

vi) A section on the behaviour of the Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord 
Mayor; 

 
vii) A section on the behaviour of the Lord Mayors Consort / Deputy 

Lord Mayors Consort or Lady Mayoress / Deputy Lady 
Mayoress. 

 
2. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
2.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening process took place 

prior to the consultation period.  The outcome indicated that it was low 
priority and a full report was not required. 

 
3. Financial Implications 
 
3.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 32



Appendix C1 
 

Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor Protocol 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 On 22 March 1982, HM Queen Elizabeth II graciously granted to the 

City of Swansea letters patent which elevated the status of the Mayor 
to that of Lord Mayor.  The Unitary Authority of the City and County of 
Swansea which came into being on 1 April 1996 was successful in 
having both the City and Lord Mayor status re-bestowed on 29 March 
1996. 

 
1.2 The actual wording of the letters patent is shown below: 
 

“Elizabeth the Second by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom of 
Great Britain and Northern Ireland and of our other Realms and 
Territories Queen Head of the Commonwealth Defender of the Faith To 
all to whom these presents shall come, Greeting.  Know ye that our will 
and pleasure is and We do hereby declare and ordain that from and 
after the date of these presents the Mayor of the City of Swansea and 
his successors in office shall be styled entitled and called LORD 
MAYOR OF SWANSEA And we do hereby authorise and empower the 
Mayor of the City of Swansea and his successors in office henceforth 
at all times to assume and use and to be called and to be named by the 
style title and appellation of Lord Mayor of Swansea and to enjoy and 
use all and singular the rights privileges and advantages to the degree 
of a Lord Mayor in all things duly and or right belonging.  In witness 
whereof we have caused these our letters to be made patent.  Witness 
Ourself at Westminster the twenty second day of March in the thirty first 
year of our reign”. 

 
1.3 The Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor Protocol aims to cover all 

aspects relating to the eligibility, nomination and behaviour of the Lord 
Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor. 

 
2. Eligibility to be Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor 
 
2.1 For the period that a person is elected as Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord 

Mayor, they must remain a Councillor of the City and County of 
Swansea. 

 
2.2 From the moment that the person ceases to be a Councillor of the City 

and County of Swansea, they automatically also cease to be the Lord 
Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 
3. Formal Procedure and Criteria for the Nomination of Lord Mayor 

and Deputy Lord Mayor 
 
3.1 Councillors must satisfy the following criteria prior to being nominated 

as Deputy Lord Mayor / Lord Mayor. 
 

i) Candidates for the position of Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord 
Mayor must be members of the Council. 

 
ii) Councillors shall be elected to the position of Deputy Lord Mayor 

and Lord Mayor based on their total length of service with the 
City and County of Swansea Council and its predecessor 
Authorities.  Appendix D (The List) highlights the “Councillors 
Total Length of Service with the City and County of Swansea 
and each of its predecessor Authorities” (As at Date Printed on 
Appendix D).  Please Note that Appendix D is not appended. 

 
iii) Simultaneous service on more than one of the City and County 

of Swansea Council’s predecessor Authorities will count as one 
period of service i.e.  If a Councillor was an Elected Member with 
Lliw Valley Borough Council and West Glamorgan County 
Council during 1990-1994, only 4 years would be counted 
towards the Councillors total length of service during that time. 

 
iv) If a Councillor has broken service with the City and County of 

Swansea Council or any of its predecessor Authorities, then the 
time of each of the periods of service will be added together in 
order to establish the total length of service.  For details of a 
Councillors Period(s) of Service with the City and County of 
Swansea and its predecessor Authorities, please refer to 
www.swansea.gov.uk/councillors 

 
v) If a Councillor has accrued service with another Authority, then 

that time will not be counted, as the time has not been spent 
representing the people of the City and County of Swansea 
Council. 

 
vi) A Councillor would only be honoured with the title Deputy Lord 

Mayor and Lord Mayor once. 
 
3.2 If there are more than 1 Councillors with exactly the same length of 

service, then the nomination will be determined as follows: 
 

i) Between the Councillors involved; 
ii) The drawing of lots between the Councillors involved. 

 
 
 
 

Page 34



4. Consultation with Political Group Leaders and their Deputies 
 
4.1 The Head of Democratic Services shall consult with the Political Group 

Leaders and their Deputies via e-mail asking them to: 
 

i) Determine whether candidates meet the criteria set out in 
Paragraph 3 above; 

 
ii) Discuss the appropriateness of the candidates nominated for the 

role of Deputy Lord Mayor and Lord Mayor. 
 
4.2 If the Head of Democratic Services receives: 
 

i) A unanimous decision that the Candidates meet the criteria set 
out in Paragraph 3 above and that the Candidates are suitable 
for the role of Lord Mayor or Deputy Lord Mayor then the Head 
of Democratic Services shall present a report to Council outlining 
this view recommending their Election as Lord Mayor Elect and 
Deputy Lord Mayor Elect accordingly; 

 
ii) A split decision that one or both Candidates do not meet the 

criteria set out in Paragraphs 3 above and / or that one or both 
Candidates are not suitable for the role of Lord Mayor or Deputy 
Lord Mayor then a meeting of the Constitution Working Group be 
arranged to consider the issue.  This only applies to the 
Candidate found not to meet the criteria or found not to be 
appropriate for the role of Lord Mayor Elect and Deputy Lord 
Mayor Elect.” 

 
5. The Constitution Working Group subject to Paragraph 4 above 

will: 
 
5.1 Determine whether candidates meet the criteria set out in Paragraph 3 

above; 
 
5.2 Discuss the appropriateness of the candidates nominated for the role of 

Deputy Lord Mayor and Lord Mayor. 
 
5.3 If a candidate is deemed appropriate for the role of Deputy Lord Mayor 

/ Lord Mayor then the Constitution Working Group shall present a 
report to Council recommending one candidate for the role of Deputy 
Lord Mayor and one candidate for the role of Lord Mayor based on the 
total length of time served by a Councillor. 

 
5.4 If a candidate is deemed inappropriate for the role of Deputy Lord 

Mayor / Lord Mayor, the Constitution Working Group shall discuss what 
(if any) sanctions that will be imposed based on the following 
questions: 

 
 

Page 35



a) Was the Councillor found in serious breach of the Councillors Code of 
Conduct? 

 
If yes, then the exclusion from holding the office of Deputy Lord Mayor / 
Lord Mayor will be for a minimum mandatory period of 5 years or 
permanent removal from “the list”.  The Constitution Working Group 
may extend this period if it deems the severity of the breach such.  The 
period cannot be shortened. 

 
b) Was the Councillor found in minor breach of the Councillors Code of 

Conduct or carried out general inappropriate action(s) not involving a 
breach of the Councillors Code of Conduct? 

 
If yes, the Constitution Working Group will decide on the severity and 
relevance of the breach of the Councillors Code of Conduct or the 
degree of inappropriate action. 

 
It shall apply such deferral of office as it, in its absolute discretion, 
considers appropriate.  As a guide such deferral of office may include 
exclusion from holding the office of Deputy Lord Mayor / Lord Mayor for 
any period up to 4 years. 

 
c) Was the Councillor found to have carried out inappropriate actions or 

other serious misbehaviour regarding the office of Lord Mayor / Deputy 
Lord Mayor not involving a breach of the Councillors Code of Conduct? 

 
If yes, then the exclusion from holding the office of Deputy Lord Mayor / 
Lord Mayor will be for a suggested period of 4 years.  The Constitution 
Working Group may increase or decrease this period if it deems 
appropriate. 

 
5.5 What is a serious or minor breach of the Councillors Code of Conduct 

will be a matter to be determined by the Constitution Working Group on 
the facts of each particular case. 

 
5.6 The exclusion period will be for the period starting with the final 

determination of the breach of the Councillors Code of Conduct for 
paragraphs 5.4 a) and 5.4 b) and the determination of the Constitution 
Working Group for paragraph 5.4. c). 

 
5.7 If a Councillor has acted in the role of Deputy Lord Mayor and is 

deemed to be inappropriate prior to commencing the role of Lord 
Mayor, then s/he shall serve the exclusion period outlined above and at 
the end of the period undertake the role of Lord Mayor. 

 
5.8 Once a Councillor has completed a period of suspension they will be 

placed on “the list” in accordance with their seniority. 
 
 
 

Page 36



5.9 In the year of a Local Government Election, it is possible that the 
next Councillor in line for the role of Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor 
either chooses not to stand for re-election or fails to get re-elected.  In 
order to attempt to overcome this, the Constitution Working Group shall 
apply the appropriateness test to the next 5 Councillors in the list 
(Appendix D) who have confirmed that they intend standing in order to 
seek re-election.  Please Note that Appendix D is not appended. 

 
5.10 The appropriateness test for these other Councillors will only be a 

measure of their appropriateness at this current point in time.  They will 
be the subject of a further appropriateness test if they are not elected to 
the role of Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor. 

 
6. Constitution Working Group Report to Council 
 
6.1 Council shall receive the report of the Constitution Working Group 

regarding nominations for the Deputy Lord Mayor and Lord Mayor.  The 
report shall nominate one Councillor for the role of Deputy Lord Mayor 
and one Councillor for the role of Lord Mayor. 

 
6.2 In the year of a Local Government Election, there will be a third and 

fourth recommendation seeking a resolution to name the next 5 
Councillors as being eligible should the initial nominations fail to be re-
elected.  These additional 5 Councillors shall be appointed in line with 
the Protocol. 

 
6.3 When a Councillor is elected to the position of Deputy Lord Mayor, then 

that person would become Lord Mayor the following municipal year, 
subject to Paragraph 5.4 b) and 5.4 c) above. 

 
7 Role of Council 
 
7.1 Council will receive the report of the Constitution Working Group 

regarding nominations for the Deputy Lord Mayor and Lord Mayor.  It 
shall consider whether to accept the recommendations of the 
Constitution Working Group or not. 

 
7.2 In the year of a Local Government Election, Council shall also be 

asked to accept the nominations of the next 5 Councillors under the 
Protocol in order to have an automatic fall-back position should the 
initial nominations fail to be re-elected.  The automatic fall-back would 
mean that the next eligible Councillor who had been subjected to and 
passed the appropriateness test by the Constitution Working Group 
would be elected to the position of Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor as 
necessary. 

 
 
 
 

Page 37



7.3 Should Council not accept the recommendations of the Constitution 
Working Group, then the matter should be deferred to either the next 
Ordinary meeting of Council or to an Extraordinary meeting of Council 
in order for the appropriateness test to be considered for the next 
Councillor in line based on length of service by the Constitution 
Working Group. 

 
8. Deferment of Term of Office 
 
8.1 If a Councillor chooses to defer their term of office, then it would only 

be allowed in exceptional circumstances and subject to approval from 
all Political Group Leaders e.g. in the case of illness of the Councillor or 
close member of their family. 

 
8.2 If the Leader of the Council is scheduled to be Lord Mayor then the 

Leader of the Council shall have the opportunity to defer his / her term 
of office for as long as they deem necessary. 

 
9. Behaviour of Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor during their Term of 

Office 
 
9.1 Should the behaviour of the Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor be 

brought into question during their term of office, then the behaviour 
should be reported to either, the Chief Executive, the Monitoring 
Officer, the Head of Democratic Services or to the relevant Political 
Group Leader. 

 
9.2 However, if the alleged behaviour is considered to be a breach or 

potential breach of the Councillors Code of Conduct then the 
complainant should refer the matter to the Public Services Ombudsman 
for Wales or Police as appropriate. 

 
9.3 The allegation will be passed to the Constitution Working Group for 

them to consider whether it requires any immediate action to be taken.  
The Group may also determine any sanction to be imposed (if any) 
pending the outcome of the Ombudsman’s or Police investigation (if 
any). 

 
10. Suspension from Office as a Councillor 
 
10.1 Should a Councillor be suspended from the Office of Councillor for a 

period of time following a breach of the Councillors Code of Conduct, 
the following actions are to be followed: 

 
10.1.1 Suspension is for a period Less than the remaining term of office of the 

Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor 
 
i) The issue shall be automatically referred to the Constitution Working 

Group for it to consider what action, if any should be taken. 
 

Page 38



10.1.2 Suspension is for a period Longer than the remaining term of office of 
the Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor 

 
i) The Councillor will cease to serve as Lord Mayor / Deputy Lord Mayor 

with immediate effect. 
 
10.2 The Constitution Working Group reserves the right to amend the 

sanction as it sees fit. 
 
11. Behaviour of Lord Mayor’s Consort, / Deputy Lord Mayor’s 

Consort, Lady Mayoress / Deputy Lady Mayoress during their 
Term of Office 

 
11.1 Should the behaviour of the Lord Mayor’s Consort, / Deputy Lord 

Mayor’s Consort, Lady Mayoress / Deputy Lady Mayoress be brought 
into question during their term of office, then the behaviour should be 
reported to either, the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer, the Head 
of Democratic Services or to the relevant Political Group Leader. 

 
11.2 The allegation(s) will be passed to the Constitution Working Group for 

them to consider whether it requires any immediate action to be taken.  
Action could include suspending the individual for a period of time or 
seeking a Council resolution to remove the individual from Office. 

 
 
 
 
 
Huw Evans – Head of Democratic Services 
25 June 2014 

Page 39



Report of the Head of Democratic Services 
 

Democratic Services Committee – 16 July 2014 
 

DELIVERY OF AGENDAS TO COUNCILLORS 
 

Purpose: 
 

To seek opinions on the Delivery of Agendas to 
Councillors. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 

To lower the cost of the weekly Courier Service. 
 

Consultation: 
 

Finance, Legal. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 

  

1) The Democratic Services Committee recommends an option to Council 
for approval. 

  

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Legal Officer: Patrick Arran 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Councillors who are summoned to attend meetings of the Authority are to be 

provided with a summons.  Schedule 12, Paragraph 4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 provides as follows: 

 
“(b) A summons to attend the meeting... shall, subject to sub-paragraph (3) 

below, be left at or sent by post to the usual place of residence of 
every member of the Council.” 

 
1.2 Historically, the Authority has provided a weekly courier service to the home 

address of each Councillor.  The Friday courier service was initially intended 
to deliver actual summons to Councillors; however over the years this has 
slipped to include almost everything placed in a Councillors pigeon hole. 

 
1.3 The Courier Service is expensive and in light of the difficult financial 

challenges facing the Authority, all arrangements need to be reviewed in order 
to try and seek a cheaper yet effective alternative. 

 
1.4 Overtime costs alone are in the region of £7,500 per annum.  There are also 

additional costs associated with the service due to fuel and vehicle costs. 
 
1.5 The purpose of this report is to request the Democratic Services Committee to 

consider alternatives to the current arrangement which is untenable. 
 

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



1.6 Whilst the statutory provision refers to the Councillors having papers delivered 
to their home address, the Act does provide for an alternative: 

 
“(3) If a member of a principal council gives notice in writing to the proper 

officer of the council that he desires summonses to attend meetings 
of the council to be sent to him at some address specified in the 
notice other than his place of residence, any summons addressed to 
him and left at or sent by post to that address shall be deemed 
sufficient service of the summons.” 

 
1.7 A number of Councillors have already opted out of this system, choosing 

either to receive them electronically or instead to collect their Summons / 
Agendas directly from the Civic Centre. 

 
2. Use of Technology to Distribute Agendas 
 
2.1 The Democratic Services Team has been publishing agendas on line and 

distributing electronic agendas via e-mail for a number of years.  This is an 
effective and efficient way of distribution.  Following the recent acquisition of 
the Modern.gov software system, an App is available on Apple and Android 
which allows agendas, minutes and reports to be automatically downloaded 
direct to an individual’s Tablet computer.  The user would simply need to 
choose preferences and everything else is done by the App.  This system 
means that once downloaded they sit on the Tablet without the need for any 
connection at the meeting. 

 
2.2 Technology appears to be the answer to many issues; however Councillor, 

Officers and the Public often favour a hard copy over an electronic copy.  
Presumably, this is due to the fact that it is easier to make notes on a hard 
copy whereas it can be complicated to make notes on electronic versions.  
There are software solutions available for this. 

 
3. Options to Consider 
 
3.1 Option 1 – All Councillors give notice in writing stating that they wish to cease 

receiving agendas at their home address.  The Authority can then cease to 
continue operating a courier service; and all Councillors will collect their 
agendas directly from the Civic Centre.  Additionally, electronic versions of the 
agendas will be available online and e-mailed directly to them. 

 
3.2 Option 2 - The Authority establishes a Voluntary Opt Out System whereby 

Councillors are encouraged to opt out of the Courier Service; however it is 
clearly their choice.  These Councillors will have their agendas distributed to 
them electronically; however their hard copy will remain in their pigeon hole 
until they choose to collect it. 

 
3.3 Option 3 - Alternative suggestions to be provided by the Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 41



4. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening process took place prior to 

the consultation period.  The outcome indicated that it was low priority and a 
full report was not required. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 Savings will be achieved by changing the current arrangement. 
 
6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1 There are no legal implications other than those set out in the body of the 

report. 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Appendices: None. 

Page 42



Report of the Head of Democratic Services 
 

Democratic Services Committee – 16 July 2014 
 

COUNCILLORS ANNUAL REPORTS 
 

Purpose: 
 

To provide an update in relation to the number of 
Councillors Annual Reports which have been 
submitted to the Head of Democratic Services. 
 

FOR INFORMATION  

 

Report Author: Huw Evans 

  
Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

  

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith 

  

Access to Services Officer: Phil Couch 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Section 5 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 requires the 

Authority to make arrangements for Councillors to produce and publish 
Annual Reports in relation to their activities. 

 
1.2 At its meeting of 19 November 2013 Council adopted the standard 

template and associated guidance notes as recommended by the 
Democratic Services Committee.  

 
1.3 Four Cabinet Members (Councillors June Burtonshaw, Will Evans, 

Christine Richards and Mitch Theaker) undertook a pilot scheme for the 
2012-2013 municipal year as an example for other Councillors to follow 
due to this being a new requirement on Councillors. 

 
1.4 These 4 annual reports have been translated and uploaded onto the 

Councillors individual web pages. 
 
2. Councillors Annual Reports 2013-2014 
 
2.1 As of 4 July 2014 forty five (45) Councillors Annual Reports have been 

submitted to the Head of Democratic Services.  The list of those 
Councillors is shown in Appendix A. 

 
2.2 Once, the Councillor Annual Report has been submitted, the Head of 

Democratic Services checks it to ensure that it complies with the rules.  It 
is then passed for translation.  Once translated, both versions are placed 
onto the individual Councillors web pages. 

 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



3. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
3.1 The report is based on Welsh Government guidance to meet a statutory 

requirement to allow Councillors to report on their activities during the 
previous year.  As such, no requirement has been identified for an EIA 
report. 

 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications. 
 
5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications. 
 
 
Background Papers: 
None. 
 
Appendices: 
 

Appendix A List of Councillors Annual Reports received. 

 

Page 44



Last Name First Name(sDraft submitted Final conf by 
Councillor

Authorised by 
H Evans

To Welsh 
Translation

Translation 
received

Posted on web

Bayliss John 04.07.14 04.07.14 07.07.14 07.07.14
Black Peter
Bradley Nick
Burtonshaw June
Child Mark   03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Clay Bob 30.06.14 30.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Clay Uta  08.07.14 08.07.14 08.07.14
Colburn Tony
Cole David  30.05.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 25.06.14
Cook Ann   10.06.14 10.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Crouch Sybil  04.07.14 07.07.14 07.07.14
Curtice Jan   10.06.14 16.06.14 30.06.14 02.07.14
Davies John
Davies Nick  29.05.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 25.06.14
Day Mike  05.06.14 10.06.14 10.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Downing Philip   03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Doyle Ryland 07.07.14
Evans Mandy   05.06.14 05.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Evans William  02.06.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Fitzgerald Wendy  30.05.14 04.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 25.06.14
Francis-Davies Robert  24.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Gordon Fiona   10.06.14 10.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Hale Joe  31.05.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Harris Jane  04.0.6.14 05.06.14 05.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Hennegan Terry  02.06.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Holley Christopher  02.06.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Hood-Williams Paxton  02.06.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 25.06.14
Hopkins Beverley  19.06.14 23.06.14 23.06.14 30.06.14 02.07.14
Hopkins David  19.06.14 23.06.14 23.06.14 30.06.14 02.07.14
James Lynda   03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 25.06.14

P
age 45



Last Name First Name(sDraft submitted Final conf by 
Councillor

Authorised by 
H Evans

To Welsh 
Translation

Translation 
received

Posted on web

Jardine Yvonne
Jones Andrew   06.06.14 10.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Jones Jeff  31.05.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Jones Mary  29.05.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Jones Sue     02.06.14 04.06.14
Kirchner Erika
Lewis Andrea  29.05.14 03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 25.06.14
Lewis David  09.06.14 09.06.14 09.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Lewis Richard
Lloyd Clive   22.05.14 29.05.14 12.06.14 16.06.14
Lloyd Paul   22.05.14 29.05.14 12.06.14 16.06.14
Marsh Keith   03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Matthews Penny 
Meara Paul
Morris Hazel  24.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Newbury John
Owen Byron 07.07.14
Owens Geraint
Phillips David
Philpott Cheryl
Raynor Jennifer 10.06.14 19.06.14 19.06.14 19.06.14
Rees Huw
Richard Ioan    22.05.14 12.06.14 16.06.14
Richards Christine 04.07.14 04.07.14 07.07.14 07.07.14
Ronconi-Woolla Neil
Sangha Pearleen
Smith Paulette
Smith Robert 06.07.14 06.07.14 07.07.14 07.07.14
Stanton June
Stewart Robert

P
age 46



Last Name First Name(sDraft submitted Final conf by 
Councillor

Authorised by 
H Evans

To Welsh 
Translation

Translation 
received

Posted on web

Sullivan Gareth
Tanner Gloria 03.07.14 03.07.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
Theaker Mitchell 08.07.14
Thomas Ceinwen    22.05.14 12.06.14 16.06.14
Thomas Des 07.07.14 07.07.14 08.07.14 08.07.14
Thomas Graham
Thomas Mark   22.05.14 29.05.14 12.06.14 16.06.14
Thomas Miles
Tyler-Lloyd Linda   03.06.14 04.06.14 24.06.14 24.06.14
Walker Gordon
Walton Lesley  05.06.14 10.06.14 10.06.14 03.07.14 04.07.14
White Mike    22.05.14 12.06.14 16.06.14

P
age 47



DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE (12) 
 

Councillors 
 
Labour Councillors: 8 

Bob A Clay Erika T Kirchner  

Ann M Cook Andrea S Lewis 

Nick J Davies  David J Lewis 

Robert Francis-Davies Lesley V Walton 

 
Liberal Democrat Councillors: 2 

Mary H Jones  Paul M Meara 

 
Independent Councillor: 1 

Keith E Marsh  

 
Conservative Councillor: 1 

Anthony C S Colburn  
 

Cabinet Member 

Christine Richards Deputy Leader 
 
 
 

Officers: 

Jack Straw Chief Executive 

Patrick Arran Head of Legal, Democratic Services & 
Procurement – Electronic 

Tracey Meredith Deputy Head of Legal, Democratic Services & 
Procurement 

Huw Evans Head of Democratic Services 

Lee Wenham  Head of Marketing, Communications & Scrutiny 

Dave Mckenna Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

Democratic Services  

File  

Archives  
 

 

Total Copies Needed: 
 

27 

 
 

 

Page 48


	Agenda
	3 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interest.
	4 Minutes.
	5 Councillor Consultation On City & County of Swansea Future ICT Services.
	6 Amendments to the Council Constitution & to the Councillors Handbook.
	7 Delivery of Agendas to Councillors.
	8 Update on Annual Reports.
	Update on Annual reports (appendix) 3
	DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE


